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This double postcard view taken in about 1910 shows the intersection of South Stephenson 
Avenue and East Hughitt Street.  Kramer Brothers (Benjamin Kramer and Meyer or Mike 
Kramer) were the proprietors of the Kentucky Liquor Store at 401 South Stephenson 
Avenue by 1892, still selling wholesale liquor here in 1902.  In 1907 John H. McKenna sold 
liquor and cigars here, but by 1913 Thomas Seccombe ran a saloon at this site.  Sometime 
between 1913 and 1924 George Vellenette established a confectionery shop here known as 
the Liberty Candy Kitchen.  At 403 South Stephenson Avenue Wagner & Sundgren (D.H. 
Wagner and J.A. Sundgren) ran a barbershop by 1892.  By 1902 Moses Taylor operated The 
Hub Clothing here, but the stock was being liquidated in April 1905, following his death.  
There was no listing for 403 until 1926 when the S.S. Kresge Company opened its store at 
this location.  Anderson, Tackman & Company, a certified public accounting firm, now 
occupies the southeast corner of this intersection.  Nels M. Nelson, the photographer, 
purchased Eskilôs Studio from Ali Numa Chatelain in May 1910, operating the studio until his 
death in 1921. [Gene Derwinski/Dick Ferris] 
 
[NOTE:  Dates, placed chronologically, are 
highlighted in boldface red letters for easier 
reading, and names of individuals and 
places are highlighted in boldface black 
letters to facilitate finding information.] 

 
The 50th installment of Menominee 

Range Memories, a series of articles by 
William J. Cummings, Menominee Range 
Historical Foundation historian, now 
available on the Dickinson County Libraryôs 
website, is titled ñDowntown Iron Mountain 
ï 401-413 South Stephenson Avenue.ò 

The east side of the 400 block of South 
Stephenson Avenue has suffered at least 
four major fires between October 3, 1896 

and February 28, 1982.  No original 
buildings remain on this block. 

Kramer Brothers (Benjamin Kramer 
and Meyer or Myer Kramer) were the 
proprietors of the Kentucky Liquor Store, 
located at 401 South Stephenson 
Avenue, where they were ñDealers in 
wines, liquors and cigarsò at this address 
by 1892.  Benjamin Kramer and ñMikeò 
Kramer continued to operate their 
wholesale and retail liquor business here in 
1902 and George R. Sutherland, a mining 
engineer, lived upstairs. 

By 1907 John H. McKenna sold liquor 
and cigars at this location, and also resided 
here.  Thomas Seccombe was operating 
his saloon at this address by 1913, when 
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Peter Crete, a fireman, lived upstairs with 
his wife Meta Crete. 

Sometime between 1913 and 1924 
George Vellenette established a 
confectionery shop at this address.  An 
article in the April 29, 1924 edition of The 
Iron Mountain News reported on the 
expansion and  renovation of the business,  
as follows: 

Plans for extensive improvements that 
will almost double the size of the 
establishment were announced today by 
George Villenette [sic ï Vellenette], 
proprietor of the Liberty Candy Kitchen, 
located at the corner of Stephenson 
avenue and East Hughitt street. 

The exterior of the building is to be 
remodeled and painted while the interior will 
also be redecorated.  In addition, a partition 
in the rear of the ice cream parlor will be 
removed and 14 new booths installed.  This 
will provide accommodations for from 120 
to 135 persons.  The fixtures will be of 
mahogany throughout. 

Arrangements for the improvement to 
the building have been completed with Mrs. 
Celia Guley, of Green Bay, the owner, 
Vellenette said.  The work will start soon 
and it is expected all will be completed by 
June 15. 

The additional booths will make the 
parlor the largest in Iron Mountain and one 
of the largest in Upper Michigan.  The cost 
of the improvements will be more than 
$5,000.  The increase in size, Vellenette 
declares, is due to the rapid growth in 
business experienced during the last three 
years. 

Prohibition began in Michigan on May 
1, 1918 and the 18th Amendment took 
effect January 16, 1920.  With Prohibition 
the law of the land soda fountains 
increased in popularity and the demand for 
a fancier soda fountain with more booths 

may have been due to the limitations 
imposed by the new liquor restrictions.   

 In 1925 George Vellenette still 
operated a confectionery shop at this 
address, and Mrs. Jessie McNicholas, 
widow of Francis McNicholas, worked as 
a milliner and lived here, probably upstairs.  
The installation of the Liberty Candy 
Kitchenôs new soda fountain was reported 
in the May 27, 1925 edition of The Iron 
Mountain News as follows:   

Liberty candy kitchen has completed 
installation of a Bishop Babcock Red Cross 
dry system soda fountain, equipped with a 
Lipman full automatic refrigerating machine 
which does away entirely with the use of 
ice. 

A wide range of temperatures suitable 
for every soda fountain purpose can be 
obtained with the machine.  The variation is 
from 35 degrees above zero to 20 degrees 
below.  Brick ice cream will be kept at a 
temperature between zero and five degrees 
below, while bulk will be maintained at 
about 10 degrees above and other drinks 
will be maintained at 35 above.  Control of 
these temperatures is completely 
automatic, being accomplished through use 
of a thermostat. 

Refrigeration is accomplished by the 
conversion of ammonia into gas, which is 
circulated through the foundation and 
returned again to the refrigerator, where it is 
first recondensed, then put through the 
same process, being used over and over 
again. 

The new fountain gives the Liberty four 
times its former storage capacity.  It was 
installed by J.D. Fairchild and is said to be 
the only one of its kind north of Milwaukee. 

By 1935 the Rose Shop, selling 
womenôs furnishings, was operated by 
Sander Rosenblum at 401 South 
Stephenson Avenue. 
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Wagner & Sundgren (D.H. Wagner 
and J.A. Sundgren) ran a barbershop at 
403 South Stephenson Avenue by 1892, 
advertising ñFirst-class workmen.   
Everything neat, clean and inviting.  Shave 
10 cents; hair cut 25 cents.  Bath rooms in 
connection.ò 

By 1902 Moses Taylor operated The 
Hub Clothing at this address.  An article 
appearing in the March 9, 1905 edition of 
the Iron Mountain Press reported the 
closure of this business as follows: 

The Hub Store has been closed 
pending a settlement with creditors.   
Charles E. Parent, who was manager for 
the late Moses Taylor, the proprietor, 
states that the liabilities are considerably 
larger than the assets.  The store has 
always done a large business and it is 
certain that, had not Mr. Taylorôs death 
been so sudden, no difficulties would have 
been encountered. 

The liquidation of the stock was also 
reported in the April 20, 1905 edition of the 
Iron Mountain Press as follows under this 
headline:  DEAL IN CLOTHING ï L. 
Charash Purchases the Hub Stock of 
Clothing: 

L. Charash, the well-known young 
merchant of Norway, was the successful 
bidder for The Hub Clothing Store stock of 
goods, which was sold at auction by 
Attorney Pelham, representing the Taylor 
estate, last Tuesday. 

The sale was attended by a large 
number of buyers, no less than a dozen 
merchants from out of town being in 
attendance, as well as half a dozen local 
dealers, and the bidding was exceedingly 
lively.  Mr. Charash, who evidently 
understood his business, finally secured the 
line for $8,750.  Good judges tell us that the 
stock is worth double the money paid for it. 

In an interview with The Press, Mr. 
Charash states that it is his intention to 

close his store in Norway and become a 
permanent resident of Iron Mountain, 
continuing the business of the late Mr. 
Taylor, his brother-in-law.  He will at once 
purchase a large line of seasonable and 
fashionable clothing, shoes, furnishing 
goods, etc., and in order to make room for 
the new lines, the Taylor stock will be 
closed out forthwith ï in other words, at just 
above the cost price.  This means óall kindsô 
of bargains for the people of Iron Mountain. 

The store will be reopened on Saturday 
morning next.  Mr. Charash has engaged 
Robert H. Sherman, one of the most 
popular salesmen on the range, to assist 
him in the management of the store, and he 
wants all the people to call and see him. 

There was no listing for 403 South 
Stephenson Avenue in 1907, 1913 or 1925. 

By 1892 Kalitt & Reeves (G.H. Kalitt or 
A.H. Kalitt and John E. Reeves) were 
confectioners at 405 South Stephenson 
Avenue.  W.H. Sweet worked as an 
architect and contractor here by 1902. 

By 1907 Charles B. Parent was the 
proprietor of The Parent Clothing 
Company at this address, advertising 
ñclothing, furnishings, trunks, valises, 
shoes, etc.ò  The Parent Clothing Store, 
Charles B. Parent, proprietor, still operated 
here in 1913. 

On Thursday, December 2, 1915, the 
buildings occupied by Charles Parent (405 
ï Parent Clothing Store), John T. Carbis 
(407 ï John T. Carbis Real Estate and 
Employment Agency) and Samuel Khoury 
(409 ï Sam Khoury Confectionery), on 
Stephenson Avenue, were totally destroyed 
by fire, the alarm sounding at about 2:30 
oôclock.  The total loss on buildings and 
stocks exceeded $30,000. 

The building occupied by Parent as a 
clothing store was owned by Mrs. Esther 
M. Taylor.  It was a frame structure, two 
stories high.  The estimated value of the 
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building was $5,000 and it was insured for 
$2,000.  The loss was a total one. 

Parent initially was unable to give any 
estimate of his loss.  He had one of the 
largest and cleanest stocks of clothing and 
furnishing goods in the city and the loss 
was almost total.  Roughly estimated, the 
loss was between $12,000 and $15,000. 

Cook & Pelham (August C. Cook and 
Herbert M. Pelham), attorneys, owned the 
building occupied by Sam Khoury as a 
confectionery store, as well as the small 
office building occupied by John Carbis.  
The estimated value of the buildings was 
about $5,000 with $2,000 insurance, and 
the loss was a total one. 

Sam Khoury estimated his loss on stock 
and fixtures at $3,500 with $1,000 
insurance. 

Carbis placed his loss at $500 in books, 
maps and furniture. 

The fire was under strong headway 
when discovered.  The frame building 
owned by Mrs. Sutherland, at the corner of 
South Stephenson Avenue and East 
Hughitt Street (401 South Stephenson 
Avenue), located only a few feet north of 
the buildings destroyed, took fire several 
times, but was only damaged to a small 
extent.   

Mrs. Esther M. Taylor replaced the 
building burned in the December 2, 1915 
fire with a stone and brick building designed 
by N.P. Parmelee and erected by G.A. 
Gustafson, in the early spring of 1916.  
This building had a frontage of 30 feet on 
Stephenson Avenue and a depth of 100 
feet.  The height on Stephenson Avenue 
was 30 feet, while at the alley the height 
was only 17 feet.  A basement 30 x 50 feet 
formed a portion of the foundation.  The 
cost of erection in 1916 was $6,840, but 
when everything was completed, the 
expenditure was nearly $10,000.  Charles 
E. Parent, the clothing merchant who 

occupied the first Taylor Building was also 
the tenant in the new Taylor Building. 

In 1925 Charles E. Parent advertised 
ñHigh Grade Clothing, Fashionable 
Furnishings, Headwear and Footwear For 
Men.ò  Mrs. Esther M. Taylor, widow of 
Moses Taylor and owner of the building, 
lived here, and Dr. Arthur L. Costa, a 
dentist, had his office at this address.   

The S.S. Kresge Company opened its 
five, 10 and 25-cent store on Wednesday, 
November 17, 1926, at 405 Stephenson 
Avenue.  The store occupied the former 
Parent Clothing Store.  The building was 
lengthened and ña new, modern front 
installed, with attractive display windows 
and a center entrance,ò according to an 
article in the November 15, 1926 edition of 
the Iron Mountain News.  New fixtures of 
the latest design were being received, and 
the store was ñbrilliantly lighted.ò 
The article further noted, ñOne of the 

most interesting features of the local branch 
is the rest room provided on the second 
floor for women employees.  The furniture, 
consisting of wicker tables, chairs and 
davenports, with a deep rug, has already 
been installed.  Adjoining the rest room is 
the lunch room for employees living a 
considerable distance from the store and 
who bring their lunch to work.  Upstairs also 
is the cloak room which is locked as soon 
as the last woman employee has checked 
in for work.ò  In the basement of the store, 
857 storage bins contained merchandise 
systematically arranged as on the counters 
in the sales department. 

By 1941 the S.S. Kresge Company 
was located at 401-403 South Stephenson 
Avenue. 

There was no listing for 407 South 
Stephenson Avenue in 1892 or 1902.  
William Carbis appeared at this address 
on the street index in 1907, but the name 
should have been John T. Carbis, who 
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sold ñreal estate and insuranceò and also 
was the manager of the Menominee 
Range Employment Agency at this 
location.  William J. Carbis, of Wills & 
Carbis, sold ñgroceries and meatsò at 203 
South Stephenson Avenue in 1907.  John 

T. Carbis still sold real estate and managed 
the Menominee Range Employment 
Agency here in 1913. 

This building was destroyed by fire on 
December 2, 1915. 

 
 

 

The Menominee Range Employment & Real Estate Office, operated by John T. Carbis, 
pictured here, first appeared in the 1907-1908 city directory at 407 South Stephenson 
Avenue.  However, this photograph was dated 1905 on the back.  The business remained at 
this location until a fire on Thursday, December 2, 1915, destroyed buildings occupied by 
Charles Parent (405 ï Parent Clothing Store), John T. Carbis (407 ï John T. Carbis Real 
Estate and Employment Agency) and Samuel Khoury (409 ï Sam Khoury Confectionery), on 
Stephenson Avenue.  The total loss on buildings and stocks exceeded $30,000.  [Menominee 
Range Historical Museum] 
 

In the January 29, 1924 edition of the 
Iron Mountain News the ñgrand opening 

ballò of the new Jacobs-Khoury Company 
building, located at 407 South 
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Stephenson Avenue, was announced as 
follows under this headline ï ñDancing To 
Feature Opening of New Storeò: 

An informal grand opening ball will be 
given tomorrow night by the Jacobs-
Khoury company at the firmôs new building 
on Stephenson avenue.  The building, 
located between the Parent Clothing and 
the Levy-Unger stores, was recently 
completed.  Large blue and white signs, 
advertising the coming event, have been 
erected in the show windows of the 
building.  They are illuminated at night by 
colored spotlights. 
Reeneeôs Danceland Charmers, of 

Menominee, Mich., have been engaged to 
play.  The orchestra features ñAlò Reenee, 
pianist, formerly with the Isham Jones 
orchestra and also of radio fame.  The 
special dance numbers will include several 
spotlight dances. 

An article in the February 28, 1924 
edition of the Iron Mountain News 
announced that the Jacobs Jewelry Store 
was ñready for business in its new home, on 
the second floor of the recently-erected 
Jacobs Building, 407 South Stephenson 
Avenue.ò 

An extensive credit system was to be 
inaugurated according to Sam Jacobs, 
proprietor.  A complete line of Brunswick 
phonographs, watches, diamonds and 
silverware was to be carried, according to 
Jacobs, who moved that week from the 
Iron Mountain Mercantile Company, Ltd. 
building on 118-122 West B Street.   

On Friday evening, March 14, 1924, the 
Stern & Field Companyôs store located in 
the recently-erected Jacobs Building, 407 
South Stephenson Avenue, held a 
musical program, inviting the public to visit 
the newly-opened menôs clothing 
establishment.  The formal opening of the 
store, specializing in menôs clothing and 

furnishings, was held on Saturday, March 
15, 1924. 

Members of the Stern & Field Company 
were Hugo Field, of Hancock; Sam M. 
Field, of Moorehead, Minn.; Sigmund 
Stern, of Marquette; Herbert Stern, of 
Iron Mountain; and Noe Bertrand, of Iron 
Mountain.  The last two men were in 
charge of the Iron Mountain store, the sixth 
and newest of a chain of stores operated by 
the company ï four in the Upper Peninsula, 
one in Minnesota and one in South Dakota. 

The fixtures, built especially for the store 
by a Grand Rapids, Michigan, 
manufacturing concern, represented an 
investment of approximately $10,000 and 
were modern in every respect, including 
wall display cabinets of the latest design, 
attractive counters and floor display 
cabinets.  The display windows were of the 
arcade type with two entrances.  A special 
color scheme was used in the windows, 
being arranged by artists.   

In 1925, the Jacobs Building, at 407-
409 South Stephenson Avenue, was 
home to Stern & Field (Noe Bertrand, 
Herbert Stern), menôs furnishings, 
advertising as ñIron Mountainôs Quality 
Clothiers.ò  George P. Leanes operated a 
billiard parlor in the basement. 

The following tenants were located on 
the second floor in 1925:  Room 1, Samuel 
Jacobs, jewelry; Room 2, Mrs. E.R. 
Hughes, ñMillinery and Fancy Dress 
Goodsò; Rooms 3-4, Allan M. Buchanan, 
chiropractor, ñHours 2 to 5 and 7 to 8 p.m.ò; 
Rooms 4-5, Joseph Weinstock, 
contractor; Room 6, Mrs. Leah Elliott, 
widow of Claude Elliott, dressmaker; 
Room 7, Alexander Urban, insurance; 
Rooms 8-9, Chamber of Commerce 
(Raymond V. Dudley, president; Merton J. 
Fox, vice-president; Lawrence D. Tucker, 
secretary; Frank O. Morrett, Charles 
Parent, Benjamin Seaman and Fred S. 
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Seaman, directors) and the Boy Scouts of 
America headquarters; Rooms 10-11, 
Phelps-Drake Company, (Harold L. 
Senseman, manager) contractors. 

The Phelps-Drake Company built much 
of the Ford Plant in Kingsford and many of 
the public schools erected in the 1920s. 

On Friday, June 5, 1925, Mrs. Sam 
Jacobs opened the French Gray Shop, 
handling a complete line of ladiesô wearing 

apparel, on the second floor of the Jacobs 
Building, 407 South Stephenson 
Avenue.  The fixtures in the store were 
attractively finished in French gray.  In 
addition to the complete line of dress 
apparel, imported handwork and fancy work 
was also handled.  Japanese handkerchiefs 
were given as favors to the first 50 
customers at the grand opening. 

 

 

Samuel J. ñBokeyò Khoury ran the Central Billiard Parlor in the basement of 407 South 
Stephenson Avenue when this photograph was taken in July 1936.  Sam, at the far left, 
stood next to his brother Nicholas J. Khoury, and ñPoker Joeò Horn was third from the left.  
The other men are not identified.  This site became the Avenue Bar in the late 1930s.  When 
the S.S. Kresge Store was expanded, the company leased the first floor of this building 
beginning November 26, 1948.  Previously this building was occupied by the National Food 
Store and earlier the A & P. [Don Khoury] 
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By 1935 the Great Atlantic & Pacific 
Company (A & P) Tea Company grocery 
store was located at 407 South 
Stephenson Avenue. At that time John B. 
Whitney, a barber working for A. Iver 
Hardingôs barbershop at 105 East Hughitt 
Street, lived upstairs with his wife Sophia.  
Samuel J. ñBokeyò Khoury operated a 
billiards parlor in the basement. 

In the 1939 city directory the Great 
Atlantic & Pacific (A & P) Tea Company, 
managed by Harry Hanson, was still listed 
at this address.  In addition, the Avenue 
Bar, Samuel J. ñBokeyò Khoury, 
proprietor, was located in the basement, 
and the following businesses and 
apartments were on the second floor:  The 
Grey Shoppe, Mrs. Maggie Jacobs, 

proprietor; Samuel J. Khoury; Pattyôs 
Beauty Shop, Mrs. Patty Whitford, 
proprietor; Donald Walters, employee at 
the Von Platen Fox Company, and his 
wife Ellen; Edward Jacobs, a teacher at 
the Kingsford Schools. 

In the 1941 city directory the Great 
Atlantic & Pacific (A & P) Tea Company 
still occupied the ground floor of the 
Jacobs Building with Gordon Hanson 
listed as manager.  Samuel J. ñBokeyò 
Khoury still operated the Avenue Bar in 
the basement, and upstairs Mrs. Maggie 
Khoury continued to operate The Grey 
Shoppe, Patty Whitford did hair at Pattyôs 
Beauty Shop, and Earl H. Christensen, a 
clerk at the A & P Store, and his wife 
Blanche resided in an apartment. 

 

 
 
This postcard view, taken in the late 1940s or early 1950s, shows the east and west sides of 
the 400 block of South Stephenson Avenue, facing south. The S.S. Kresge Co. 
Department Store had expanded to include the Jacobs Building.  The Avenue Bar, 
operated by brothers Samuel J. ñBokeyò Khoury and Nicholas J. Khoury by 1959, was 
located in the basement of the Jacobs Building.  On the west side of the street were:  400, 
Manciôs Menôs Wear; 408, Kushnerôs Childrenôs Clothing (David Kushner and Eleanor 
Kushner), Shoe Bazaar (Hy Donofsky, manager); 414, Colensoôs Department Store (John 
R. Colenso and Margaret ñPegò Colenso).  [William J. Cummings] 
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Employees of Iron Mountainôs S.S. Kresge store posed for the Dud Schroder, of Kingsford, in 
1949 during the Kresge Companyôs 50th anniversary celebration.  Pictured in the front row, 
from left to right, are:  _____ Izzo, Nancy LeClair, Babe Melleli, unknown, _____ Rusky, 
Alice Okimohat, Margaret LaFebvre, _____ Gendron, Louise DeForge, Betty Harding, 
Ceil Kermode, Ethel Ohmen, unknown, Assistant Manager Roland Bramer; middle row, 
Gen Lahti, Mabel Alm, Gloria Bramer, Hildred Hanson, Germaine Michelson Broullire, 
Joyce Waltz, Doris Plante, Marilyn Maedke, Dorothy Nault, unknown, unknown, unknown, 
Betty Pirlot, Olivia Bradley, Emma Swanson, unknown; back row, Sophie White, Joyce 
Janeshek, unknown, Thelma Rodman, Hannah Nordman, Vera Morneau, unknown, 
unknown, Florence Church, unknown, Gene Oliver, unknown, unknown, Manager Willard 
Carpenter, unknown.  Note the merchandise displayed in open counters at the lower right.  
Clerks worked behind the merchandise counters, servicing both sides.   [Don Khoury] 
 

In 1946 Samuel J. ñBokeyò Khoury 
still operated the Avenue Bar, Maggie 
Jacobs operated The Grey Shoppe and 

Calvin Eyers was the proprietor of Calôs 
Gifts & Toyland.  


